ISSN 2221-6413 (Print), ISSN 2223-2559 (Online) Coden: PJSIB5 60(3) 117-174 (2017)

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research

Series A: Physical Sciences Vol. 60, No.3, September-October, 2017



(for on-line access please visit web-site http://www.pjsir.org)

Published by Scientific Information Centre Pakistan Council of Scientific and Industrial Research Karachi, Pakistan

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series A: Physical Sciences

EDITORIAL BOARD

Dr. Shahzad Alam Chief Editor

Shagufta Yasmin Iqbal Executive Editor

MEMBERS

Prof. R. Amarowicz
Polish Academy of Sciences
Olsztyn, Poland
Dr. A. Chauhan
Nat. Institute of Pharma. Education and Research, Mohali, India
Dr. Debanjan Das
C.B. Fleet Company, Inc., VA, USA
Dr. S. Goswami
Rawenshaw University, Cuttack, India Prof. S. Haydar University of Engg. & Technology Lahore, Pakistan Dr. H. Khan Institute of Chemical Sciences University of Peshawar, Pakistan Prof. W. Linert Institute of Applied Synthetic Chemistry, Vienna, Austria Prof. R. Mahmood Slippery Rock University Pennsylvania, USA Dr. S. K. Rastogi Dept. of Chem. & Biochemistry, Texas State University, USA Dr. I. Rezic Faculty of Textile Technology Zagreb, Croatia Dr. J. P. Vicente ETSCE, Universitat Jaume I Spain Prof. Z. Xie Imperial College London University UK

Prof. Z. Xu Chinese Academy of Sciences Beijing, China

Editors: Shahida Begum, Sajid Ali and Seema Iqbal

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research started in 1958, has been bifurcated in 2011 into:

Series A: Physical Sciences [ISSN 2221-6413 (Print); ISSN 2223-2559 (online)] (appearing as issues of January-February, May-June and September-October) and

Series B: Biological Sciences [ISSN 2221-6421 (Print); ISSN 2223-2567 (online)] (appearing as issues of March-April, July-August and November-December).

Each Series will appear three times in a year.

This Journal is indexed/abstracted in Biological Abstracts and Biological Abstracts Reports, Chemical Abstracts, Geo Abstracts, CAB International, BioSciences Information Service, Zoological Record, BIOSIS, NISC, NSDP, Current Contents, CCAB, Rapra Polymer Database, Reviews and Meetings and their CD-ROM counterparts etc.

Subscription rates (including handling and Air Mail postage): Local: Rs. 2500 per volume, single issue Rs. 425; Foreign: US\$ 450 per volume, single issue US\$ 75.

Electronic format of this journal is available with: Bell & Howell Information and Learning, 300, North Zeeb Road, P.O. 1346, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106, U.S.A; Fax.No.313-677-0108; http://www.proquest.com

Photocopies of back issues can be obtained through submission of complete reference to the Executive Editor against the payment of Rs. 25 per page per copy (by Registered Mail) and Rs. 115 per copy (by Courier Service), within Pakistan; US\$ 10 per page per copy (by Registered Mail) and US\$25 per page per copy (by Courier Service), for all other countries.

Copyrights of this Journal are reserved; however, limited permission is granted to researchers for making references, and libraries/agencies for abstracting and indexing purposes according to the international practice.

Printed and Published by: PCSIR Scientific Information Centre, PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi-75280, Pakistan.

Editorial Address

Executive Editor

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research, PCSIR Scientific Information Centre PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi-75280, Pakistan Tel: 92-21-99261914-99261916, 99261949, 99261917; Fax: 92-21-99261913; Web: http://www.pjsir.org, E-mail: info@pjsir.org

AIMS & SCOPE

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research (PJSIR) was started in 1958 to disseminate research results based on utilization of locally available raw materials leading to production of goods to cater to the national requirements and to promote S&T in the country. Over the past 60 years, the journal conveys high quality original research results in both basic and applied research in Pakistan. A great number of major achievements in Pakistan were first disseminated to the outside world through PJSIR.

It is a peer reviewed journal and published in both print and electronic form. Original research articles, review articles and short communications from varied key scientific disciplines are accepted however, papers of Pure Mathematics, Computer Sciences, Engineering and Medical Sciences are not entertained.

From 54th Volume in 2011, it has been bifurcated into Series A: Physical Sciences & Series B: Biological Sciences. Each series appears three times in a year as follows:

Physical Sciences in January-February, May-June and September-October issues. It includes research related to Natural Sciences, Organic Chemistry, Inorganic Chemistry, Industrial Chemistry, Physical Chemistry, Environmental Sciences, Geology, Physics, Polymer Sciences and Technology.

Biological Sciences in March-April, July-August and November-December issues. Papers included in this series are from Agriculture, Agronomy, Botany, Biochemistry, Biotechnology, Food Sciences, Genetic Engineering, Pharmaceutical Sciences, Microbiology, Marine Sciences, Soil Sciences, Tissue Culture, Zoology and Technology.

Due to many global issues, we are encouraging contributions from scientists and researchers from all across the globe with the sole purpose of serving scientific community worldwide on the whole and particularly for our region and third world countries.

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series A: Physical Sciences Vol. 60, No. 3, September-October, 2017

Contents

Electronic Structure Calculation and Crystal Structure of Trimethylpyridine Cobalt Chloride Complex	
Tao Deng	117
Schiff Bases Derived from 1-Aminoanthraquinone: A New Class of Analgesic Compounds Ghulam Fareed, Ghazala Hafeez Rizwani, Maryam Ahmed, Muhammad Ali Versiani and Nazia Fareed	122
Efficiency for Sorption Behaviour of Polymeric Resins of (2-hydroxybenzaldehyde) with Aliphatic and Aromatic Diamines Towards Different Metal Ions Ambreen Shah, Asif Ali Shah and Sobia Shafaq Shah	128
Variability in Kernel Oil and Kernel Crude Protein Contents in Sudanese Fruit Accessions of <i>Balanites aegyptiaca</i> (L.) Del. Nour Ahmed Osman-Bashira and Salah Ahmed-Ali Elhussein	134
Catalytic Reduction of Wood Kikar (<i>Acacia albida</i>) by Acetosolv and Organosolv Pulping with Organic Acids Mohammad Tahir, Akhtar Shareef, Shahid Bhutto and Nisha Khan	141
The Effect of Different Curing Conditions on Compressive Strength of Concrete Muhammad Arslan, Muhammad Asif Saleem, Maria Yaqub and Muhammad Saleem Khan	147
Application of Eco-friendly Antimicrobial Finish <i>Butea monosperma</i> Leaves on Fabric Properties of Polyester and Cotton/Polyester Shama Sadaf, Muhammad Saeed and Samia Kalsoom	154
The Role of Yarn Counts and Polyester/Cotton Blends in Comfort of Knitted Fabric Muhammad Qamar Tusief, Nabeel Amin, Nasir Mahmood, Muhammad Babar Ramzan and Hafiz Rehan Saleem	162
Short Communications	
Cleaning of Dulmial-Punjab Coal by Froth Flotation Muhammad Shahzad, Zulfiqar Ali and Asim Siddique	169
Heavy Metal Content of Refined and Bakery Salts Consumed in Pakistan Abrar ul Hassan, Sakhawat Ali, Salman Muhsen and Muhammad Rizwan	172
Contents of Volume 60, Ser. A: Phys. Sci. (No.1-3)	i
Author Index of Volume 60, Ser. A: Phys. Sci. (No.1-3)	iv
Subject Index of Volume 60, Ser. A: Phys. Sci. (No.1-3)	vi

Electronic Structure Calculation and Crystal Structure of Trimethylpyridine Cobalt Chloride Complex

Tao Deng

School of Mathematics and Computer Science, Northwest Minzu University, Lanzhou 730030, P. R. China

(received February 8, 2017; revised August 24, 2017; accepted September 11, 2017)

Abstract The new complex of 2, 4, 6-trimethylpyridine (TMPy) cobalt chloride consists of $CoCl_4$ anions and trimethylpyridine cations by ionic electrostatic force. This complex belongs in space group of $P2_1/c$, having crystalline parameters of a = 8.915, b = 17.339, c = 13.945 Å, β = 102.54°, Z = 4 and Dm = 1.37 Mg·m. Electronic structure calculation results indicated stronger covalence of $(CoCl_4)^{2-}$ and demonstrated that the coordination compound of $CoCl_4$ ·(HTMPy)₂ is very stable. There are positive charges on C_2 , C_4 and C_6 positions, and negative charges on C_3 and C_5 positions in pyridine ring. Mulliken bond grade and atom net charge were derived.

Keywords: cobalt complex, trimethylpyridine, crystal structure, electronic structure calculation, Mulliken bond grade

Pak. j. sci. ind. res. Ser. A: phys. sci. 2017 60(3) 122-127

Schiff Bases Derived from 1-Aminoanthraquinone: A New Class of Analgesic Compounds

Ghulam Fareed^a*, Ghazala Hafeez Rizwani^b, Maryam Ahmed^b, Muhammad Ali Versiani^c and Nazia Fareed^c

^aPharmaceutical Research Centre, PCSIR Laboratories Complex Karachi, Karachi-75280, Pakistan ^bDepartment of Pharmacognosy, Faculty of Pharmacy, University of Karachi, Karachi-75270, Pakistan ^cDepartment of Chemistry, Federal Urdu University of Arts, Science and Technology, Karachi, Pakistan

(received June 2, 2017; revised June 20, 2017; accepted June 21, 2017)

Abstract. A series of Schiff bases 1-17 were synthesised by way of a facile condensation between 1-aminoanthraquinone with a variety of carbonyl compounds in the presence of a catalytic amount of dodecatungstosilicic acid/P₂O₅ under solvent free conditions at room temperature. These were charachterised by ¹H- and ¹³C-NMR, LCMS, FTIR and elemental analyses. All the compounds were screened for their analgesic activity using hot plate thermal stimuli method at dose of 10 and 30 mg/kg. Diclofenac sodium was used as a reference drug. All the compounds at dose of 10 and 30 mg/kg body weight showed the significant (p<0.05) increase in latency time as compared to control (normal saline). Compound **5** showed excellent activity after 120 min of drug administration (10 mg/kg) of body weight. Compound **10** was found to be potent (10.48±1.19s, 11.27±1.2s and 10.24±1.9s) at dose of 30 mg/kg at 30, 60 and 120 min, respectively when compared to the standard drug. Compound **6** (10.13±0.4s) was also found to be an excellent analgesic compound at a dose of 30 mg/kg at 120 min. However, the studies on analgesic activity revealed that some of the target compounds may be strong candidates as an analgesic drug.

Keywords: schiff bases, 1-aminoanthraquinone, analgesic compound

Efficiency for Sorption Behaviour of Polymeric Resins of (2-hydroxybenzaldehyde) with Aliphatic and Aromatic Diamines Towards Different Metal Ions

Ambreen Shah^a*, Asif Ali Shah^b and Sobia Shafaq Shah^c

^aM.A. Kazi Institute of Chemistry, University of Sindh, Jamshoro, Sindh, Pakistan
^bMehran University Institute of Science & Technology Development, Jamshoro, Sindh, Pakistan
^cInstitute of Bussiness Administration, University of Sindh, Jamshoro, Sindh, Pakistan

(received April 29, 2017; revised August 23, 2017; accepted August 28, 2017)

Abstract. Aliphatic and aromatic polymeric resins of (2-hydroxybenzaldehyde) with 1,2-propylenediamine and 1,4-phenylenediamine were synthesised and characterised employing elemental and thermal analysis, FT-IR and UV-visible spectroscopy. The metal uptake behaviour of synthesised polymers (PMBHBPn, PMBHBPh) towards different metal ions were investigated and optimised by variety of conditions. The sorption data of these metal ions were followed Langmuir, Freundlich, and Dubinin-Radushkevich (D-R) isotherms. The Freundlich parameters were computed at $1/n = 0.26 \pm 0.02$, 0.309 ± 0.02 , 0.35 ± 0.05 , 0.368 ± 0.04 and 0.23 ± 0.01 , $A = 3.9 \pm 0.03$, 4.31 ± 0.02 , 4.683 ± 0.01 , 5.43 ± 0.03 , and 2.81 ± 0.05 mmol/g for Cu(II), Co(II), Ni(II), Fe(III) and Cd(II) ions, respectively. The variation of sorption with temperature gives thermodynamic quantity (Δ H) in the range of (AH = 36.33 - 52.14 KJ/mol) for (PMBHBPn) and (39.21-56.29 KJ/mol) for (PMBHBPh). The sorption procedure could preconcentrate metal ions, and it can be determined by atomic absorption spectrophotometer.

Keywords: polymeric resin, sorption, isotherms, kinetics, thermodynamics

Variability in Kernel Oil and Kernel Crude Protein Contents in Sudanese Fruit Accessions of *Balanites aegyptiaca* (L.) Del.

Nour Ahmed Osman-Bashir^a and Salah Ahmed-Ali Elhussein^b*

^aUniversity College at Alwajh, University of Tabuk, Saudi Arabia ^bNOPRI, University of Gezira, Wad-Medani, Sudan

(received October 10, 2016; revised May 1, 2017; accepted June 14, 2017)

Abstract: Balanites fruits (*Balanites aegyptiaca*) as a potential source of steroidal sapogenins, chemicals in demand by the pharmaceutical industry was studied. This report focuses on two potential fruit products other than sapogenins, namely, balanites kernel oil (BKO) and kernel total protein. The oil content of balanites kernels obtained from thirteen mature-fruit accessions collected from different parts of Sudan was high, reaching a value above 40% of kernel dry weight in several accessions. Kernel total protein averaged 31.2%. Some physicochemical characteristics of the oil and of its component lecithin fraction were determined. Linoleic acid was the predominant fatty acid in BKO, reaching 56.0% of total fatty acids.

Keywords: Balanites aegyptiaca, balanites kernel oil, fatty acids, kernel total protein

Catalytic Reduction of Wood Kikar (*Acacia albida*) by Acetosolv and Organosolv Pulping with Organic acids

Mohammad Tahir^a, Akhtar Shareef^a*, Shahid Bhutto^a and Nisha Khan^b ^aCentre for Environmental Studies, PCSIR Laboratories Complex, Karachi 75280, Pakistan

^bDepartment of Chemistry, University of Karachi, Karachi -75270, Pakistan

(received October 6, 2016; revised August 9, 2017; accepted August 16, 2017)

Abstract. Kikar wood (*Acacia albida*) of particle size 0.315-1.00 mm was subjected to acetosolv and organosolv pulping catalyzed by strong acid like HCl. The selective condition for pulping is 95%, 0.25% catalyst (HCl) solid/liquor ratio (S/L) 1:12.5 for 180 mins, for acetic acid, 80%, 0.2% catalyst (HCl), S/L 1:12.5 for 120 min, for formic acid, 85%, 0.2% catalyst (HCl), S/L 1:12.5 for 180 min for propionic acid, giving residues impurities but the α -cellulose and klason lignin 58.5% and 24.1% in Kikar wood. The optimum delignification was achieved by the acetic acid as compared to other organic acids.

Keyword: wood, organosolv, acetosolv, pulping, kikar

Pak. j. sci. ind. res. Ser. A: phys. sci. 2017 60(3) 147-153

The Effect of Different Curing Conditions on Compressive Strength of Concrete

Muhammad Arslan^a*, Muhammad Asif Saleem^b, Maria Yaqub^c and Muhammad Saleem Khan^d

^aNational Engineering Services of Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd, Lahore, Pakistan ^bNational Logistics Cell, Lahore, Pakistan ^cGeological Survey of Pakistan, Lahore, Pakistan ^dUniversity of Engineering and Technology, Lahore, Pakistan

(received May 05, 2016; revised June 23, 2017; accepted July 07, 2017)

Abstract. The focus of this research work was to analyse the effect of different types of curing on compressive strength of concrete structures. For this purpose, 54 test specimens of cylindrical shape were prepared. These specimens were cured with different methods and were tested on different age days to analyse the effect of curing on compressive strength. Test specimens cured with conventional water curing method gives the highest results as compared to the other adopted methods.

Keywords: conerete, compressive strength, hydration, curing

Application of Eco-friendly Antimicrobial Finish Butea monosperma Leaves on Fabric Properties of Polyester and Cotton/Polyester

Shama Sadaf^a*, Muhammad Saeed^b and Samia Kalsoom^a

^aGovernment College of Home Economics, Gulberg, Lahore, Pakistan ^bInstitute of Education & Research (IER), University of the Punjab, Lahore, Pakistan

(received February 23, 2016; revised September 28, 2017; accepted September 30, 2017)

Abstract. The study was aimed to check the effect of eco-friendly antimicrobial finish on 100% polyester and 50/50 cotton/polyester woven fabrics. The leaves' extract of *Butea monosperma* was used as an eco-friendly antimicrobial finish. The fabric was first desized, scoured, bleached and washed then antimicrobial finish was applied by using pad dry cure method. The aesthetic, comfort and mechanical fabrics properties were checked before and after applying antimicrobial finish. Under aesthetic property stiffness and smoothness appearance was checked, under comfort related property absorbency and air permeability was checked and under mechanical property tear and tensile strength was checked. The antimicrobial finish was checked by using ASTEM E2149 Shake Flask method. The AATCC and ISO standard testing methods were used for checking fabric properties. One way ANOVA statistical test was applied for analysis of results. Antimicrobial finish has increased aesthetic (stiffness, smoothness appearance), comfort (absorbency, air permeability) and mechanical (tensile and tear strengths) properties of polyester and cotton/polyester fabrics up to 25 washes. This study is beneficial to medical industry, paramedical staff, sports wears, home furnishing as well as common people.

Keywords: antimicrobial finish, Butea monosperma, polyester, cotton, polyester

Pak. j. sci. ind. res. Ser. A: phys. sci. 2017 60(3)162-168

The Role of Yarn Counts and Polyester/Cotton Blends in Comfort of Knitted Fabric

Muhammad Qamar Tusief^a*, Nabeel Amin^b, Nasir Mahmood^a, Muhammad Babar Ramzan^b and Hafiz Rehan Saleem^a

^aDepartment of Fibre and Textile Technology, University of Agriculture, Faisalabad, Pakistan ^bSchool of Textile and Design, University of Management and Technology Lahore, Pakistan

(received August 25, 2016; revised August 8, 2017; accepted August 30, 2017)

Abstract. There have been three major concerns regarding the clothing comfort, psychological, sensorial and thermo-physiological comfort. However, there is lack of work on thermo-physiological comfort of knitted fabric. Hence the present study is conducted to fulfill this gap by analyzing physiological comfort in sense of air permeability, absorbency, vertical wicking and drying time of plain knitted fabric. Clothing comfort is mainly affected by type of fibres, yarn properties, structure of fabric, finishing treatments, and clothing conditions. In this study the effect of various yarn counts and polyester/cotton blend ratios on the comfort of knitted fabric has been analyzed using Statistical Package for the Social Sciences (SPSS). It is depicted from the results that the selected variables put direct influences on the thermo-physiological comfort of the knitted fabric. The increasing share of polyester in the blend and the fine count for yarn put negative impact on the comfort of the knitted fabric.

Keywords: yarn count, polyester/cotton blends, air permeability, drying time, absorbency

Short Communication

Cleaning of Dulmial-Punjab Coal by Froth Flotation

Muhammad Shahzad*, Zulfiqar Ali and Asim Siddique

Mining Engineering Department, University of Engineering & Technology, Lahore, Pakistan

(received July 22, 2016; revised August 25, 2017; accepted September 11, 2017)

Abstract. This study was undertaken to assess the cleaning potential of Dulmial-Punjab coal by froth flotation. Release analysis was performed to determine the optimum flotation response of the coal. Number of batch flotation tests were performed to investigate the effects of various parameters such as particle size, impeller speed, collector dosage, frother dosage and conditioning time on clean coal yield and ash content. It was found that maximum yield of 51.25% with 39.5% ash content was achieved at impeller speed, collector dosage, frother dosage and conditioning time of 1600 RPM, 1200 g/t, 200 g/t and 10 min, respectively.

Keywords: froth flotation, release analysis, Dulmial-Punjab coal

Pak. j. sci. ind. res. Ser. A: phys. sci. 2017 60(3) 172-174

Short Communication

Heavy Metal Content of Refined and Bakery Salts Consumed in Pakistan

Abrar ul Hassan^a*, Sakhawat Ali^b, Salman Muhsen^a and Muhammad Rizwan^c

^aDepartment of Chemistry, University of Management and Technology, Joher Town, Lahore, Pakistan ^bFood and Biotechnology Research Centre (FBRC), PCSIR Laboratories Complex, Lahore -54600, Pakistan ^cDepartment of Chemistry, Minhaj University, Lahore, Pakistan

(received November 12, 2016; revised February 21, 2017; accepted March 3, 2017)

Abstract. This study involved the investigation of heavy metal contents of 100 refined and an equal number of bakery refined table salt samples collected from the local markets of Lahore, Faisalabad and Gujranwala, Pakistan. Levels of lead, copper, cadmium and iron were estimated using an atomic absorption spectro-photometer. The results indicated a mean \pm SD in µg/g levels in the refined table salt samples for lead (0.85±0.22), copper (1.37±0.25), cadmium (0.41±32) and iron (7.72±2.1). For bakery refined table salts values for same metals ranged 1.61±0.51, 2.07±1.2, 0.71±0.21 and 12.6±5.1, respectively. Obtained results were compared with the maximum limits recommendations for human consumption set by Codex Alimentarius Commission.

Keywords: heavy metals, refined salts, bakery salts

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series A: Physical Sciences Volume 60

Contents

Series A: Physical Sciences			
Vol. 60, No.1, January - February, 2017			
Turmeric Powder as a Natural Heavy Metal Chelating Agent:			
Surface Characterisation			
Amtul Qayoom, Syed Arif Kazmi and Saeeda Nadir Ali	1		
Beneficiation Study on Barite Ore of Duddar Area, District Lasbela,			
Balochistan Province, Pakistan			
Muhammad Arif Bhatti, Kamran Raza Kazmi, Rashid Mehmood, Abdul Ahad,			
Anila Tabbassum and Adnan Akram	9		
Experimental Investigation of Performance Characteristics of Compression			
Ignition Engine Fuelled with Punnai Oil Methyl Ester Blended Diesel			
Mathan Raj Vijayaragavan, Ganapathy Subramanian, Lalgudi Ramachandran,			
Manikandaraja Gurusamy, Rahul Kumar Tiwari and Sanat Kumar	22		
Qualitative Analysis of Siro-spun and Two Fold Yarns Tensile Properties			
under the Influence of Twist Factor			
Muhammad Qamar Tusief, Nasir Mahmood, Nabeel Amin and Akmal Saeed	29		
Appraisal of Drinking Water Quality in Lahore Residence, Pakistan			
Khalid Mahmood and Muhammad Asim	34		
Sulphide Removal from Sewage Wastewater by Oxidation Technique			
Muhammad Tahir Butt, Naz Imtiaz, Naeem Abbas and Rauf Ahmad Khan	42		
The Study of PM ₁₀ Concentration and Trace Metal Content in Different Areas			
of Karachi, Pakistan			
Durdana Rais Hashmi, Akhtar Shareef and Farooq Ahmed Khan	50		
Vol. 60, No.2, May - June, 2017			
Isolation and Identification of Catechin by a New Method from Food Efficiency Stimulating Plant <i>Alhagi camelorum</i>			

Chemical Characterisation of Himalayan Rock Salt	
Abrar ul Hassan, Ayesha Mohy Udd Din and Sakhawat Ali	67
Radiological Parameters Due to Radon-222 in Soil Samples	
at Baghdad Governorate (Karakh). Iraq	
Ali Abid Abojassim, Ahmed Rahim Shltake, Laith Ahmed Najam and Inas Riad Merza	72
Dynamic Compression and Therma Dhysical Properties of Some Wood Particles	
in South Western Nigerie	
Sunday Samuel Oliyama, Olewala Damon Pollo and Mathew Adefusika Adekova	70
Sunday Samuer Oruyamo, Oraware Ramon Beno and Matnew Adelusika Adekoya	19
A Three-Layer Microstrip Resonator for Complex Permittivity	
Measurement of Medium Loss Liquids Using 3D-FDTD Simulation	
Cyrus Avaznia and Gholamreza Moradi	85
Biosorption of Chromium (VI) and Calculations of Langmuir's	
and Freundlichs Isotherms	
Muhammad Tahir Butt, Zara Amjad and Rauf Ahmad Khan	90
Extraction of Ecofriendly Leather Dyes from Plants Bark	
Hafiza Rushra Shamsheer, Tahira Aziz Mughal, Attiya Ishaq, Sana Zaheer	
and Kiran Zahid	96
Quantification of Pesticide Residues in Drinking Water in Different Areas	
of District Charsadda, Pakistan	
Muhammad Nasimullah Qureshi and Inayat-Ur-Rahman	101
Effects of Crude Oil Inundated Soils on the Ecosystem – A Case Study	
Mudiaga Chukunedum Onojake and Selegha Abrakasa	106
Aradinga Chanancaum Chojane and Selegna Abrandou	100
Short Communication	
Effect of pH During Composting of Municipal Solid Waste	
Shahid Raza, Neelma Munir, Shagufta Naz, Jalil Ahmed and Ayesha Ameen	114
Vol. 60, No.3, September - October, 2017	
Electronic Structure Calculation and Crystal Structure of Trimethylpyridine	
Cobalt Chloride Complex	
Tao Deng	117
Schiff Bases Derived from 1-Aminoanthraquinone: A New Class of Analgesic Compounds	
Ghulam Fareed, Ghazala Hafeez Rizwani, Maryam Ahmed,	
Muhammad Ali Versiani and Nazia Fareed	122
Efficiency for Sorption Behaviour of Polymeric Resins of (2-hydroxybenzaldehyde)	
with Aliphatic and Aromatic Diamines Towards Different Metal Ions	
Ambreen Shah, Asif Ali Shah and Sobia Shafaq Shah	128

Variability in Kernel Oil and Kernel Crude Protein Contents in Sudanese Fruit Accessions of <i>Balanites aegyptiaca</i> (L.) Del.			
Nour Ahmed Osman-Bashira and Salah Ahmed-Ali Elhussein			
Catalytic Reduction of Wood Kikar (<i>Acacia albida</i>) by Acetosolv and Organosolv Pulping with Organic Acids			
Mohammad Tahir, Akhtar Shareef, Shahid Bhutto and Nisha Khan	141		
The Effect of Different Curing Conditions on Compressive Strength of Concrete			
Muhammad Arslan, Muhammad Asif Saleem, Maria Yaqub and Muhammad Saleem Khan	147		
Application of Eco-friendly Antimicrobial Finish <i>Butea monosperma</i> Leaves on Fabric Properties of Polyester and Cotton/Polyester			
Shama Sadaf, Muhammad Saeed and Samia Kalsoom	154		
The Role of Yarn Counts and Polyester/Cotton Blends in Comfort of Knitted Fabric Muhammad Qamar Tusief, Nabeel Amin, Nasir Mahmood,			
Muhammad Babar Ramzan and Hafiz Rehan Saleem	162		
Short Communications			
Cleaning of Dulmial-Punjab Coal by Froth Flotation			
Muhammad Shahzad, Zulfiqar Ali and Asim Siddique	169		
Heavy Metal Content of Refined and Bakery Salts Consumed in Pakistan			
Abrar ul Hassan, Sakhawat Ali, Salman Muhsen and Muhammad Rizwan	172		
Contents of Volume 60, Ser. A: Phys. Sci. (No.1-3)	(i)		
Author Index of Volume 60, Ser. A: Phys. Sci. (No.1-3)	(iv)		
Subject Index of Volume 60, Ser. A: Phys. Sci. (No.1-3)	(vi)		

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series A: Physical Sciences Volume 60

Author Index

Abbas, Naeem **60A**(1)42 Abojassim, Ali Abid 60A(2)72 Abrakasa, Selegha 60A(2)106 Adekoya, Mathew Adefusika 60A(2)79 Ahad, Abdul 60A(1)9 Ahmed, Jalil **60A**(2)114 Ahmed, Maryam **60A**(3)122 Akram, Adnan 60A(1)9 Ali, Saeeda Nadir 60A(1)1 Ali, Sakhawat 60A(2)67; 60A(3)172 Ali, Zulfigar 60A(3)169 Ameen, Ayesha 60A(2)114 Amin, Nabeel 60A(1)29; 60A(3)162 Amjad, Zara 60A(2)90 Arslan, Muhammad 60A(3)147 Asim, Muhammad 60A(1)34 Avaznia, Cyrus 60A(2)85 Bello, Olawale Ramon 60A(2)79 Bhatti, Muhammad Arif **60A**(1)9 Bhutto, Shahid 60A(3)141 Butt, Muhammad Tahir 60A(1)42; 60A(2)90 Deng, Tao **60A**(3)117 Elhussein, Salah Ahmed-Ali 60A(3)134 Fareed, Nazia **60A**(3)122 Fareed, Ghulam 60A(3)122 Gurusamy, Manikandaraja 60A(1)22 Hashmi, Durdana Rais 60A(1) 50 Hassan, Abrar ul 60A(2)67; 60A(3)172 Imtiaz, Naz **60A**(1)42 Ishaq, Attiya **60A**(2)96 Kalsoom, Samia 60A(3)154

Kazmi, Kamran Raza 60A(1)9 Kazmi, Syed Arif 60A(1)1 Khan, Farooq Ahmed 60A(1)50 Khan, Khalid Mohammad 60A(2)59 Khan, Muhammad Saleem 60A(3)147 Khan, Nisha 60A(3)141 Khan, Rauf Ahmad 60A(1)42; 60A(2)90 Kumar, Sanat **60**A(1)22 Laghari, Abdul Hafeez 60A(2)59 Mahmood, Khalid 60A(1)34 Mahmood, Nasir 60A(1)29; 60A(3)162 Mehmood, Rashid 60A(1)9 Memon, Shahabuddin 60A(2)59 Merza, Inas Riad **60A**(2)72 Mohy Udd Din, Ayesha 60A(2)67 Moradi, Gholamreza 60A(2)85 Mughal, Tahira Aziz 60A(2)96 Muhsen, Salman 60A(3)172 Munir, Neelma 60A(2)114 Najam, Laith Ahmed 60A(2)72 Naz, Shagufta 60A(2)114 Nelofar, Aisha 60A(2)59 Oluyamo, Sunday Samuel 60A(2)79 Onojake, Mudiaga Chukunedum 60A(2)106 Osman-Bashira, Nour Ahmed 60A(3)134 Qayoom, Amtul 60A(1)1 Qureshi, Muhammad Nasimullah 60A(2)101 Rahman, Inayat-Ur- 60A(2)101 Ramachandran, Lalgudi 60A(1)22 Ramzan, Muhammad Babar 60A(3)162 Raza, Shahid 60A(2)114

Pak. j. sci. ind. res. Ser. A: phys. sci. 2017 60 Author Index

Rizwan, Muhammad **60A**(3)172 Rizwani, Ghazala Hafeez **60A**(3)122 Sadaf, Shama **60A**(3)154 Saeed, Akmal **60A**(1)29 Saeed, Muhammad **60A**(3)154 Saleem, Hafiz Rehan **60A**(3)162 Saleem, Muhammad Asif **60A**(3)147 Shah, Sobia Shafaq **60A**(3)128 Shah, Ambreen **60A**(3)128 Shah, Asif Ali **60A**(3)128 Shah, Asif Ali **60A**(3)128 Shahzad, Muhammad **60A**(3)169 Shamsheer, Hafiza Bushra **60A**(2)96 Shareef, Akhtar **60A**(1)50; **60A**(3)141 Shltake, Ahmed Rahim **60A**(2)72 Siddique, Asim **60A**(3)169 Subramanian, Ganapathy **60A**(1)22 Tabbassum, Anila **60A**(1)9 Tahir, Mohammad **60A**(3)141 Tiwari, Rahul Kumar **60A**(1)22 Tusief, Muhammad Qamar **60A**(1)29; **60A**(3)162 Versiani, Muhammad Ali **60A**(3)122 Vijayaragavan, Mathan Raj **60A**(1)22 Yaqub, Maria **60A**(3)147 Zaheer, Sana **60A**(2)96 Zahid, Kiran **60A**(2)96

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series A: Physical Sciences Volume 60

Subject Index

1-Aminoanthraquinone: A new class of analgesic compounds	60A (3)122
3D-FDTD simulation, a three-layer microstrip resonator for	60A (2)85
A three-layer microstrip resonator	60 A(2) 85
Acetosolv and organosolv pulping with organic acids	60A (3)141
Alhagi camelorum, isolation and identification of catechin	60A (2)59
Aliphatic and aromatic diamines of polymeric resins of	60A (3)128
Analgesic compounds, schiff bases derived from	60A (3)122
Application of eco-friendly antimicrobial finish Butea monosperma	60A (3)154
Appraisal of drinking water quality in Lahore	60A (1)34
Balanites aegyptiaca (L.) Del., variability in kernel oil and accessions of	60A (3)134
Barite ore of Duddar area, District Lasbela, Balochistan	60A (1)9
Beneficiation study on barite ore of Duddar area	60A (1)9
Biosorption of chromium (VI) and calculations of	60A (2)90
Butea monosperma leaves on fabric properties	60A (3)154
Catalytic reduction of wood kikar (Acacia albida)	60A (3)141
Catechin, isolation and identification of	60A (2)59
Chemical characterisation of Himalayan rock salt	60A (2)67
Chromium (VI), biosorption of	60A (2)90
Cleaning of Dulmial-Punjab coal by froth flotation	60A (3)169
Coal, cleaning of Dulmial-Punjab	60A (3)169
Complex permittivity measurement of medium loss liquids	60A (2)85
Composting of municipal solid waste, effect of	60A (2)114
Compressive strength of concrete, the effect of	60A (3)147
Concrete, the effect of different curing conditions	60A (3)147
Crude oil inundated soils, effects of	60A (2)106
Crude protein contents in Sudanese fruit	60A (3)134
Crystal structure of trimethylpyridine cobalt chloride complex	60A (3)117
Drinking water quality in Lahore residence	60A (1)34
Drinking water, quantification of pesticide residues	60A (2)101
Dynamic compression and thermo-physical properties of some wood particles	60A (2)79
Ecosystem, effects of crude oil inundated soils	60A (2)106
Effect of pH during composting of municipal solid waste	60A (2)114
Effects of crude oil inundated soils on the ecosystem	60A (2)106
Efficiency for sorption behaviour of different metal ions	60A (3)128
Efficiency for sorption behaviour of polymeric resins	60A (3)128
Electronic structure calculation and crystal structure of	60A (3)117
Extraction of ecofriendly leather dyes from plants bark	60A (2)96
Froth flotation cleaning of Dulmial-Punjab coal	60A (3)169
Heavy metal chelating agent, turmeric powder as	60A (1)1
Heavy metal content of refined and bakery salts	60A (3)172

Himalayan rock salt, chemical characterisation of	60A (2)67
Ignition engine fuelled with Punnai oil	60A (1)22
Iraq, Radon-222 in soil samples	60A (2)72
Isolation and identification of catechin	60A (2)59
Knitted fabric, the role of yarn counts and	60A (3)162
Langmuir's and Freundlich's isotherms, biosorption of chromium	60A (2)90
Leather dyes from plants bark, extraction of	60A (2)96
Municipal solid waste, effect of pH	60A (2)114
Oxidation technique, sulphide removal from	60A (1)42
Pakistan, appraisal of drinking water quality	60A (1)34
Pakistan, beneficiation study on barite ore	60A (1 9
Pakistan, heavy metal content of	60A (3)172
Pakistan, pesticide residues in drinking water in different areas	60A (2)101
Pakistan, the study of PM ₁₀ concentration	60A (1)50
Performance characteristics of compression ignition engine	60A (1)22
Plants bark, leather dyes from	60A (2)96
PM ₁₀ concentration and trace metal content	60A (1)50
Polyester and cotton/polyester, application of	60A (3)154
Polyester/cotton blends in comfort of knitted fabric	60A (3)162
Punnai oil methyl ester blended diesel, experimental investigation of	60A (1)22
Qualitative analysis of siro-spun and two fold yarns	60A (1)29
Quantification of pesticide residues in drinking water	60A (2)101
Radiological parameters due to Radon-222 in soil samples	60A (2)72
Refined and bakery salts consumed in Pakistan	60A (3)172
Resins of (2-hydroxybenzaldehyde) with	60A (3)128
Salt, chemical characterisation of	60A (2)67
Schiff bases derived from 1-Aminoanthraquinone	60A (3)122
Sewage wastewater, sulphide removal	60A (1)42
Siro-spun and two fold yarns tensile properties	60A (1)29
Soil samples, radiological parameters due to Radon-222	60A (2)72
Sulphide removal from sewage wastewater	60A (1)42
Surface characterisation, turmeric powder	60A (1)1
The effect of different curing conditions on	60A (3)147
The role of yarn counts and polyester/cotton blends	60A (3)162
Thermo-physical properties of some wood particles	60A (2)79
Trace metal content, the study of PM ₁₀ concentration	60A (1)50
Trimethylpyridine cobalt chloride complex	60A (3)117
Turmeric powder as a natural heavy metal chelating agent	60A (1)1
Variability in kernel oil and kernel crude protein	60A (3)134
Wood kikar (Acacia albida), catalytic reduction of	60A (3)141
Wood particles, dynamic compression and	60A (2)79
Yarns tensile properties under the influence of twist factor	60A (1)29

Pakistan Journal of Scientific & Industrial Research (PJSIR)

Call For Papers

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research (PJSIR) is the premier research journal of Pakistan and has been publishing for the last 59 years, comprising of original research papers in the fields of Physical and Biological Sciences. Since January 2011, the Journal has been bifurcated and now published bimonthly i.e. 6 issues in a year in two series as follows:

- Series A: Physical Sciences (appearing as issues of January-February, May-June and September-October) including articles of Physics, Physical and Analytical Chemistry, Geology, Geography, Environmental Sciences, Technology) and
- Series B: Biological Sciences (appearing as issues of March-April, July-August and November-December) including articles of Agriculture, Botany, Zoology, Microbiology, Biochemistry, Biological Chemistry, Genetics, Food Sciences, Pharmaceutical Sciences, Environmental Sciences).

PJSIR is an interdisciplinary open access peer-reviewed refereed journal and complies with the international standards and ethics of scientific community.

We publish original primary research articles/Review papers related to Biological Sciences, Physical Sciences and Technology. However, we do not entertain articles of Pure Mathematics, Computer Sciences, Social/Management Sciences and Medical Sciences. You may send it via e-mail info@pjsir.org as well as through our website www.pjsir.org.

CALL FOR PAPERS

Please submit your research papers for upcoming volume 61 of PJSIR for the year 2018.

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research **PCSIR - Scientific Information Centre**

PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzman Siddiqui, Karachi - 75280, Pakistan Ph: 92-21-99261949-99261917, Fax: 92-21-99261913, E-mail: info@pjsir.org Website: www.pjsir.org

EXCHANGE FORM

We wish to receive Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Ser. A: Phys. Sci: and/or Ser. B: Biol. Sci. in exchange of :

Name of Journal:	 	
Frequency:	 	
Subjects Covered:	 	
Institution:	 	
Address:	 	
C '		
Signature:		
Name:	 	
Designation:	 	
Date:	 	
E-mail:	 	
Fax:		
Phone:	 	

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research **PCSIR - Scientific Information Centre**

PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzman Siddiqui, Karachi - 75280, Pakistan

Ph: 92-21-99261949-99261917, Fax: 92-21-99261913, E-mail: info@pjsir.org Website: www.pjsir.org

SUBSCRIPTION FORM

I/we wish to subscribe to 'Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research' Ser. A: Phys. Sci: and/or Ser. B: Biol. Sci. The filled in proforma is being returned for compliance.

Subscriber's dat Name: Address:	
E-mail: Fax: Phone:	
Signature: Order Membershi	No. (if any):
Tick the relevant box:	Send invoice Bill later on Cheque forenclosed
RevisedSubscription Rates:	ocal: Rs. $2500/=$ per volume; Rs. $425/=$ per copy oreign: US\$ $450/=$ per volume: US\$ $75/=$ per copy

Foreign: US450/ = per volume; US75/ = per copy

Payment should be made through cross cheque in favour of PCSIR NIDA 16-3 NBP and mailed to the Director PCSIR -Scientific Information Centre, PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi-75280, Pakistan.

INSTRUCTIONS TO AUTHORS

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research, Series A: Physical Sciences and Series B: Biological Sciences publish original researches as full research papers, short communications and reviews. Articles submitted to other journals for publication are not accepted. All manuscripts are evaluated by subject experts of advanced countries. However, authenticity of the contents remains the sole responsibility of the author/s. The Journal reserves the rights to edit, wherever considered necessary.

Manuscripts should be submitted with a covering letter, giving unabbreviated names and addresses of all the authors, indicating the corresponding author and certifying that the paper has neither been, nor will be sent elsewhere for publication.

Author/s may submit electronic copies in MS Word via e-mail or through our website. The manuscript should contain, in order, Running Title (not more than 60 characters), Title of the article, full names, addresses, telephone numbers, fax numbers, e-mail addresses of all the Authors, Abstract (not more than 150 words), three to six Keywords, Introduction, Materials and Methods, Results and Discussion, Acknowledgement (if applicable), References, Tables and Illustrations. All illustrations should be of good quality with legible captions. In case of coloured figures, 50% printing expenses would have to be borne by the authors.IUPAC rules for units and their abbreviations should be used. Plagiarism Report of the submitted paper must be attached and similarity index should be < = 19%.

References should be verifiable and cited in the text by the last name of the author (both authors if only two, the first author and *et al* when more than two) followed by the year, **in descending chronological order.** All references in the bibliography should be listed in alphabetical order of the authors' last names followed by date of publication and other complete details with full names of Journals as given below. Anonymous (Anon) references are not accepted.

Papers of Journals

In "Text"

Park (2005), Aksu and Kabasakal (2004) and Evans *et al.* (2000) (Park, 2005; Aksu and Kabasakal, 2004; Evans *et al.*, 2000)

In "References"

Evans, W.J., Johnson, M.A., Fujimoto, Cy. H., Greaves, J. 2000. Utility of electrospray mass spectrometry for the characterization of air-sensitive organolan-thanides and related species. *Organometallics*, **19:** 4258-4265.

Books

Cinar, A., Parulekar, S.J., Undey, C., Birol, G. 2003. Batch Fermentation: Modeling, Monitoring, and Control, 250 pp. Marcel Dekker Inc., New York, USA.

Chapters in Edited Books

Newby, P.J., Johnson, B. 2003. Overview of alternative rapid microbiological techniques. In: *Rapid Microbiological Methods in the Pharmaceutical Industry*, M.C. Easter (ed.), vol. **1**, pp. 41-59, 1st edition, Interpharm/CRC, Boca Raton, Florida, USA.

Papers in Proceedings

Marceau, J. 2000. Innovation systems in building and construction and the housing industry in Australia. In:*Proceedings of Asia-Pacific Science and Technology Management Seminar on National Innovation Systems* pp. 129-156, Japan Int. Sci. Technol. Exchange Centre, Saitama, Japan.

Reports

SIĈ-PCSIR. 2002. Biannual Report, 2000-2001; 2001-2002, Scientific Information Centre, Pakistan Council of Scientific and Industrial Research, PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi, Pakistan.

Thesis

Saeed, A. 2005. Comparative Studies on the Biosorption of Heavy Metals by Immobilized Microalgal Cultures, Suspended Biomass and Agrowastes.

Ph.D. Thesis, 248 pp., University of the Punjab, Lahore, Pakistan.

Patents

Young, D.M. 2000. Thermostable Proteolytic Enzymes and Uses Thereof in Peptide and Protein Synthesis, US Patent No. 6,143,517, 7th November, 2000.

Data Set from a Database (information should be retrievable through the input)

Deming, D.; Dynarski, S. 2008. The lengthening of childhood (NBER Paper 14124) Cambridge, MA: National Bureau of Economic Research. Retrieved July 21, 2008 from http:// www.nber.org/papers/w14124) DOI No.....

The manuscripts should be addressed to: The Executive Editor, Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research, Scientific Information Centre, PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Sharah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi-75280, Pakistan.

Phone: (92-21)-99261914, 16, 17, 99261949, **Fax:** (92-21) 99261913

Web: http://www.pjsir.org; E-mail: info@pjsir.org